## **Preliminary Information Memorandum**

For inviting Expression of Interest

for

## **Strategic Disinvestment of**

## **ENGINEERING PROJECTS (INDIA) LIMITED**

 $\mathbf{B}\mathbf{y}$ 

Government of India through the Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises

October 2017

Transaction Advisors YES Bank Limited



## **Disclaimer and Important Notice**

YES Bank Limited ("YES Bank") has been retained as the advisor by the Government of India ("GoI") for advising and managing the proposed strategic disinvestment of Engineering Projects India Limited (hereinafter referred to as "EPI" or "Company"), pursuant to an order F.No. 3/23/2016-DIPAM-II-B dated 24th March 2017 (aforesaid proposed strategic disinvestment hereinafter referred to as the "**Transaction**"). This Preliminary Information Memorandum (hereinafter referred to as the 'PIM') has been prepared by YES Bank for the limited purposes of providing certain information on EPI for enabling the recipients to be appraised of such certain basic details of EPI prior to submission of the Expression of Interest ("**EoI**") in respect of the Transaction. This PIM is only for the use by entities classified by the GoI as Central Public Sector Enterprises. Unless otherwise specified, the information contained herein is as on 15th May 2017, and may be subject to material updates, revisions or amendment. Neither GoI, the Company nor YES Bank, undertake to update this PIM. YES Bank has not independently verified any of the information and data contained herein. Neither the GoI, the Company nor YES Bank (nor any of their respective affiliates, subsidiaries, advisors and agents), (i) make any representations or warranties, express or implied, as to the accuracy, or completeness of such information and data, (ii) take any responsibility for, or will accept any liability whether direct or indirect, express or implied, contractual, tortuous, statutory or otherwise, in respect of, the accuracy, completeness, authenticity, correctness and fairness of the information or for any of the opinions contained in the PIM or for any errors or omissions or for any loss/damage be it tangible or intangible, howsoever arising, from the use of this PIM and (iii) take any responsibility or accept any liability for any other written or oral communications transmitted to the recipient by or on behalf of Company or YES Bank or GoI or any of their advisors in the course of your evaluation of any transaction involving the Company. Any liability or responsibility of GoI, the Company and YES Bank and their respective advisors is, therefore, expressly disclaimed. You should conduct your own investigation and analysis of the Company in connection with the Transaction.

The GoI reserves the right to change the procedures for pursuing the Transaction. The issue of this PIM does not imply that the GoI, Company or YES Bank are bound to select an interested bidder for the Transaction and the GoI and YES Bank reserve the right to reject all or any of the Interested Bidders or their EoIs without communicating any reasons whatsoever.

The PIM may include certain estimates, projections, statements, targets and forecasts with respect to the Company/industry in which the Company operates and these are based on the various assumptions made by the management, officers or employees of the Company and/or YES Bank. Actual results may differ materially from these forward-looking statements due to various factors. You should note that past performance of the Company is not a guide for future performance of the Company. The summary financial information have been obtained from the audited annual financial statements and may differ from the actual numbers to the extent of approximations or use of rounded numbers. Unless stated otherwise the industry data has not been independently verified by YES Bank, the Company, the GoI or any of their affiliates or advisors. The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of presentation. The GoI, the Company, YES Bank and their respective advisors undertake no obligation to provide the recipient with access to any additional information or to update this PIM with additional information or correct any inaccuracies herein, which may become apparent. Each potential investor must seek its own advice from professionals for any matters pertaining to or relating to the Company or the Transaction or for evaluating the Transaction including with regard to legal, financial and taxation issues.

This PIM has been prepared for information purposes only, without any regard to specific objectives, suitability, financial situations and needs of any particular person and does not constitute any

recommendation and is not intended to be the basis for participating in the Transaction, and should not be construed as an offer or invitation for sale or the solicitation of an offer to buy, purchase or subscribe to any securities, if any, mentioned herein. The materials and information contained herein is made available upon the express understanding that you will use it only for the purpose set forth above.

This PIM has been prepared by YES Bank upon information available from public sources and from the Company, believed to be reliable to assist the recipients in making their own evaluation of EPI and does not purport to be all-inclusive or to contain all of the information that may be material to the recipients' decision to enter into the Transaction.

The distributing/taking/sending/dispatching/transmitting of this document in certain jurisdictions other than the Republic of India may be restricted or prohibited by law of such jurisdiction and persons into whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions. Publication of this PIM by any entity other than YES Bank or the GoI is strictly prohibited. The recipient shall be solely liable and responsible for any dissemination, distribution, transmission or reproduction of this PIM. Any failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of the laws of any such other jurisdictions for which the recipient shall be solely liable and responsible. It is recommended that this PIM not be disseminated, distributed, transmitted or reproduced. The logos and trademarks used in this presentation are owned by the respective owners and are used for representation purpose only without any explicit permission of the owners.

This PIM is divided into chapters & sub-sections only for the purpose of reading convenience. Any partial reading of this PIM may lead to inferences, which may be at divergence with the conclusions based on the entirety of this PIM. Further, by accessing or reviewing a copy of this PIM, the recipient accepts the terms of this Notice, which forms an integral part of this PIM.

All acts, deeds and things done or caused or intended to be done, by GoI, the Company and YES Bank hereunder are based on and in reliance of your acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Disclaimer.

## **Table of Contents**

| 1. INTRO | DUCTION                   | 5  |
|----------|---------------------------|----|
| 1.1      | Transaction Background    | 5  |
| 2. Inf   | FORMATION ABOUT EPI       | 7  |
| 2.1      | Background                |    |
| 2.2      | Business profile          | 8  |
| 2.3      | Offices of EPI            | 11 |
| 2.4      | Management                | 11 |
| 2.5      | Capital structure         | 12 |
| 2.6      | SWOT Analysis             | 13 |
| 2.7      | Real estate asset holding | 13 |
| 3. FIN   | JANCIALS                  | 14 |
| 3.1      | Balance Sheet             | 14 |
| 3.1      | Profit & Loss Account     | 15 |
| 4 INI    | DUSTRY OUTLOOK            | 16 |
| 5 SU     | BMISSION OF EOI           | 20 |
| 5.1      | Transaction process       | 20 |
| 5.2      | Eligibility Criteria      | 21 |
| 5.3      | EoI instructions to IB    | 22 |
| 5.4      | Filling Requirements      | 25 |
| 5.5      | Disqualification          | 26 |
| Annexur  | es                        | 29 |
| Glossary |                           | 55 |

## 1. Introduction

### 1.1 Transaction Background

- 1.1.1 The President of India holds 99.98% of the paid-up Equity Shares in Engineering Projects (India) Limited ("**EPI**" or the "**Company**") through Department of Heavy Industries ("**DHI**"). 99.98% shareholding of GoI is in the form of fully paid-up 3,54,15,677 equity shares of EPI having a face value of Rs 10/- each ("**Equity Shares**").
- 1.1.2 The remaining 7,011 Equity Shares are held by 6 Public Sector Undertakings ("**PSUs**") and a trust on behalf of these PSUs i.e. Heavy Engineering Corporation Limited holds 3,575 Equity Shares, Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited holds 1,892 Equity Shares, Mining & Allied Machinery Corporation Limited (under liquidation) holds 490 Equity Shares, Triveni Structurals Limited (under liquidation) holds 490 shares, Instrumentation Limited holds 350 Equity Shares, Hindustan Steelworks Construction Limited holds 210 Equity Shares, and EPI Shareholders' Trust holds 4 Equity Shares on behalf of the above PSUs.
- 1.1.3 GoI intends to disinvest 100% of its equity shareholding i.e. consisting of 99.98 % of the paid-up Equity Shares in EPI, held by the President of India through the DHI along with transfer of management control through a competitive bidding process by way of sale of Equity Shares to a similarly placed CPSE (the "**Transaction**").
- 1.1.4 YES Bank Limited ("**YES Bank**"), has been appointed by Department of Investment and Public Asset Management ("**DIPAM**") as the advisor ("**Transaction Advisor**") for the Transaction.

1.1.5 Important Dates for EoI process:

| S.no. | Event  | Date             |
|-------|--|------------------|
| 1.    | Publication of advertisement and floating of EoI         | 12 October 2017  |
| 2.    | First day of taking queries                              | 12 October 2017  |
| 3.    | Last day of taking query                                 | 25 October 2017  |
| 4.    | Posting replies to queries as FAQ on websites            | 01 November 2017 |
| 5.    | The last day for Submission of EoI (" <b>Due Date</b> ") | 08 November 2017 |
| 6.    | EoI opening*   | 08 November 2017 |

<sup>\*</sup> EoI opening shall mark the start of the evaluation of EoI from the next business day after Due Date and does not mean the day of shortlisting of EoI.

1.1.6 All communications, inquiries and requests for information should be directed to following:

| Abhishek Gupta                     | Karandeep Singh             | Tarun Kaushik                     |  |  |
|------------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|--|--|
|                                    |                             |                                   |  |  |
| Executive Vice President           | Assistant Vice President    | Manager                           |  |  |
| YES Bank                           | YES Bank                    | YES Bank                          |  |  |
| 48, Nyaya Marg,                    | 48, Nyaya Marg,             | 48, Nyaya Marg,                   |  |  |
| Chanakyapuri,                      | Chanakyapuri,               | Chanakyapuri,                     |  |  |
| New Delhi - 110021                 | New Delhi - 110021          | New Delhi - 110021                |  |  |
|                                    |                             |                                   |  |  |
| Email:                             | Email:                      | Email:                            |  |  |
| abhishek.gupta@yessecuritiesltd.in | karandeep.singh3@yesbank.in | tarun.kaushik@yessecuritiesltd.in |  |  |
| Tel: +91 11 6656 9000              | Tel: +91 11 6656 9000       | Tel: +91 11 6656 9000             |  |  |

**Clarifications:** Any queries or request for clarification/additional information concerning this PIM shall be submitted to Mr. Karandeep Singh, Assistant Vice President at YES Bank, 48, Nyaya Marg, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110 021, Email – <a href="mailto:karandeep.singh3@yesbank.in">karandeep.singh3@yesbank.in</a> not later than the date mentioned in PIM 25 October 2017. The communications shall clearly bear the following identification / title: Query: PIM – EPI.

Note: No query to be addressed to DHI, EPI and DIPAM.

## 2. INFORMATION ABOUT EPI

## 2.1 Background

## **Inception and history**

Engineering Projects (India) Limited was incorporated in the year 1970 with the main objective to undertake turnkey projects and consultancy services in India and abroad. EPI is a profit making, dividend paying Mini Ratna Category-II Central Public Sector Enterprise in Industrial Development and Technical Consultancy Services sector under the administrative control of the Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises with 99.98% shares of EPI held by the Government of India and 0.02% held by 6 PSUs and a trust on behalf of these PSUs.

EPI is engaged in the field of execution of large and multidisciplinary industrial & construction projects on turnkey basis in the areas like Civil and Structural Work, Metallurgical sector, Water Supply and Environmental Engineering, Defence, Housing, Townships, Hospitals & Institutional Buildings, Coal & Material Handling Systems, etc.

The services rendered by the Company include the specialized/diversified activities such as Feasibility Studies & Detailed Project Reports, Design and Engineering, Supply of Plant & Equipment, Quality Assurance, Construction & Erection, Trial run and Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance, turnkey project management and project management consultancy.

### Core business Activities

The Company's core activities include the following:

- ✓ To provide integrated services from concept to commissioning for the multidisciplinary projects;
- ✓ To provide Project Management Consultancy (PMC) & rendering integrated services including installation, testing & commissioning;
- ✓ To take up large Industrial and Construction projects;
- ✓ To explore & expand the areas of operation and diversifying the business with available latest technology;
- ✓ To develop countrywide geographic spread and visibility;
- ✓ To secure mega projects in the field of its core competency for high profitability in overseas, as due to less site office expenses, the profit margin shall be high as compared to low value projects;
- ✓ Maintaining High quality standard and customer satisfaction;

- ✓ Developing Core areas and Skill of the key personnel;
- ✓ Securing Border management projects in India.

### Process Quality Checks

EPI is an ISO (9001:2008), ISO (14001:2004+AC: 2009) and OHSAS (18001:2007) certified company.

Within the construction and contracting sector, EPI is one of the first few PSUs to get the above certification.

## 2.2 Business profile

### Business model

EPI provides integrated services from concept to commissioning for the multidisciplinary projects. EPI has an in-house capability of Design & Engineering, providing Project Management Consultancy (PMC) & rendering integrated services in the following specialized activities:

- Feasibility Studies & Detailed Projects Reports,
- > Preliminary and Detailed Estimation of the projects,
- > Design & Engineering,
- > Supply of Plant & Equipment,
- Quality Assurance,
- ➤ Erection & Commissioning,
- Operation & Maintenance.

EPI is having the capability and team of experienced technical professionals & supervisors to take up large Industrial and Construction projects on EPC / turnkey basis in the following areas:

- ➤ Civil & Structural works (Including Township Development, Sports Stadia, Roads & Highways Construction & Infra Structure Development Projects),
- ➤ Material Handling Projects (Including Coal Handling Plant, Ore Handling Plant for Thermal Power Plants & Steel Plants respectively),
- ➤ Industrial & Process Plant (Including Oil& Gas extraction plant, Oil Storage Depot& Oil & Gas pipelines, Power Plant, Steel Plant & Ore extraction & beneficiation Plant),
- Ordnance Factory and Storage Silos,

- ➤ Electrical Power Distribution Plant including Substations,
- ➤ Air Ports Development Projects,
- Railway Workshop Projects,
- ➤ Border Management Projects including Security & Surveillance System at Border,
- ➤ Hospital and Institutional Buildings Projects.
- ➤ Water Supply & Environmental Engineering.

EPI is exploring & expanding the areas of operation and diversifying the business with available latest technology in the following fields:

- ➤ Solar Power Projects,
- ➤ Heavy Electrical Equipment Online Monitoring System (EPI is focussing in this field to secure the projects in Chhattisgarh & Maharashtra State),
- ➤ Processing Plant for extraction of Tungsten (EPI has submitted Expression of Interest for setting up Tungsten Plant of Mishra Dhatu Nigam (A Govt. of India Enterprise),
- ➤ City Surveillance System (EPI is having tie-up with French companies to enter in Smart City Development Projects),
- ➤ Dairy & Cattle feed Projects (EPI has submitted detailed Plant Report to Agriculture Ministry on Delhi Milk Scheme Plant of Ministry of Agriculture, Govt. of India),
- ➤ Ropeway Development Projects (EPI is having technology tie-up with POMA (French company) for Ropeway Development projects),
- > Railway Projects.

EPI is executing multi-disciplinary projects from concept to commissioning. The industrial, process plant, material handling, electrical, border management projects is the highest contributor to the turnover of the company followed by housing & building works including Hospital projects segment. The percentage share of industrial, process plant, material handling, electrical, border management projects are about 57% and housing & building works including Hospital projects contribute about 36% of the total turnover of the company respectively.

## Operational performance

During the year 2015-16, the Company achieved operating turnover of Rs. 1,295 crore as against the previous year turnover of Rs. 1,031 crore and earned Profit before Tax ("PBT") of Rs. 38 crore as against previous year's PBT of Rs. 41 crore. The Gross Margin of the year was Rs.45 crore as compared to Rs. 49 crore in the previous year.

The net worth of the Company has increased by Rs. 12 crore from Rs. 216 crore in the year 2014-15 to Rs. 228 crore in the year 2015-16.

### Marketing Initiatives

EPIL has re-entered into foreign markets after a long gap and secured overseas projects in Oman, Sri Lanka, and Myanmar.

Keeping in view the various Government of India's initiatives/policies such as ease in FDI, Make in India etc., EPI has entered/is entering into MOUs with suitable entities for securing works in infrastructure development sector.

To secure business, EPIL looks at the tenders floated across various geographies such as Malaysia, Qatar, Bangladesh, Saudi Arabia, Kuwait and African Countries as part of its international expansion.

### Employee base

As at 30<sup>th</sup> April, 2017, the Company has an employee base of 374 people with the following segmentation:

| Type       | Number |
|------------|--------|
| Executive  | 319    |
| Supervisor | 35     |
| Workmen    | 20     |
| Total      | 374    |

## Key differentiators

✓ Core Strength of the company are execution of building, material handling projects, industrial and process plant, hospital, university, border infrastructure development, irrigation and infrastructure.

#### ✓ Workforce

- Only 374 employees on permanent employment with a regular pay scale.
- o There was no VRS operative in the years 2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-16.

### ✓ Geographic experience

- o Company has executed projects across India.
- o Operated in overseas countries viz. Kuwait, Iraq, Saudi Arabia, Maldives, Thailand, Yugoslavia, Bhutan, UAE and presently operating in Oman and Sri Lanka.

### **✓** Government Backing

 99.98% of shares of EPI are held by the Government of India and balance 0.02% is held by 6 PSUs and a trust on behalf of these PSUs.

#### ✓ Order book

 As on March 2017, Company has an outstanding order book of Rs 6,261 crore. Order book comprises of projects in segments such as:

| Segments  | Percentage of order book |
|---|--------------------------|
| Industrial, Process Plant, material Handling, Electrical and Border | 48%                      |
| Management Projects   | 1070                     |
| Institutional Buildings   | 16%                      |
| Hospitals & Medical Colleges  | 14%                      |
| Transportation Structures(Roads)                                    | 10%                      |
| Water Supply, Irrigation Works & Dams, Environmental Schemes,       | 7%                       |
| Dairy Process Plants, Agricultural Markets                          | / /0                     |
| Non-Institutional Buildings, Houses, Townships, Infrastructure for  | 5%                       |
| Armed Forces  | 3%                       |

EPI has re-entered into foreign markets after a long gap and secured overseas projects in Oman and Sri Lanka. The turnover for the year ending 31st March 2016 was in the ratio of 40:60 for foreign and domestic sectors respectively. The International Business is expected to continue in the similar manner in the near future with the award of new overseas projects.

### 2.3 Offices of EPI

EPI operates from its corporate office in New Delhi. The Company sets up project and site offices wherever there is an ongoing project. The address of registered office and corporate office is as under:

| Registered &Corporate Office |
|------------------------------|
| Core-3,                      |
| Scope Complex, 7 Lodhi Road  |
| New Delhi – 110003           |

EPI also has five Regional Offices. EPI also has Branch/Project offices at Oman, Sri Lanka, and Saudi Arabia. EPI Urban Infra Developers Limited, New Delhi has been incorporated as a subsidiary company of EPI in May 2016 with Rs. 0.051 crore as equity participation by the Company with EPI holding 51% shareholding in the subsidiary. This Subsidiary company is non-operational and process for its closure has been initiated.

## 2.4 Management

The senior management of EPI consists of qualified people with experience in their area of expertise. The Company is managed by Board of Directors, comprising Whole Time Directors,

Government Nominee Directors and Independent Directors, all of whom are appointed by President of India.

EPI's Board of Directors comprises Eight Positions:

- 3 Whole Time/Functional Directors:
  - o Chairman cum Managing Director,
  - o Director (Projects),
  - o Director (Finance).
- 2 Government Nominees representing Administrative Ministry;
- 3 Independent Directors.

As on 30th April 2017, 2 Functional Directors, 2 Government Nominees and 2 Independent Directors were holding office.

## 2.5 Capital structure

The authorized and paid up share capital of the Company are Rs. 909.40 crore (divided into 909,404,600 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each) and Rs. 35.42 crore (divided into 35,422,688 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each) respectively.

The shareholding pattern of the Company as on 30th April, 2017 is as under:

- 35415677 shares (99.98%) are held in the name of President of India through Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises;
- 7011 shares (0.02%) are held by 6 PSUs and a trust on behalf of these PSUs i.e. Heavy Engineering Corporation Limited holds 3575 shares, Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited holds 1892 shares, Mining & Allied Machinery Corporation Limited (under liquidation) holds 490 shares, Triveni Structurals Limited (under liquidation) holds 490 shares, Instrumentation Limited holds 350 shares, Hindustan Steelworks Construction Limited holds 210 shares, and EPI Shareholders' Trust holds 4 shares on behalf of the above PSUs.

## 2.6 SWOT Analysis

## **Strengths**

- Offers wide range of services in various areas of Engineering & Construction,
- Capability for taking up multi-disciplinary projects in India & abroad,
- Undertaken Border Surveillance PMC,
- Pan-India presence,
- Competency in Civil Engineering/Project Management,
- Capable of taking up defense projects especially international border fencing projects equipped with latest modern electronic techniques,
- Being a PSU, capable of securing sensitive government to government infrastructure projects, especially border fencing, road networks, etc.

#### Weaknesses

• EBIDTA margin of the company has decreased from approx. 5% in FY12 to approx. 3% in FY16 due to increase in overhead cost and stiff competition.

## **Opportunities**

- Scope in smart city projects, steel & power plant projects, multidisciplinary projects,
- Enhancing business prospects of the company within the purview of Make In India initiative,
- Unique Border Surveillance Credentials.

#### **Threats**

- Security concerns, natural calamities such as earth quake and floods hindering construction,
- Highly competitive infrastructure market,
- Prolonged delay in land acquisition and environmental clearances.

## 2.7 Real estate asset holding

#### Leasehold

- Corporate Office, New Delhi: 5673.03 sq. meters,
- Industrial Land at Alwar to be used as workshop: 10,000 sq. meters,
- Flat in Sea View Palace, Bandra, Mumbai: 69.677 sq. meters,
- Bakhtawar, Nariman Point, Mumbai: 4500 sq. ft., garage no. 8 and car parking no. 6,

#### Freehold

- 16 Flats in Airoli, Navi Mumbai: Each flat has area 52.58 sq. meters (built up),
- Flats in Delite Apartment, Bandra, Mumbai:
  - Flat No 13: 975 sq. ft. (built up area) 879 sq. ft. (carpet area),
  - Flat No 14: 1375 sq. ft. (built up area) 1176 sq. ft. (carpet area),
- 4 Flats in Flower Nest, Bandra, Mumbai : Each flat has area 825 sq. ft. (built up),
- Flat in Costa Belle, Bandra, Mumbai: 1170 sq. ft. (built up),
- Flats in Garden Apartment, Kolkata:
  - Flat No D-7: 910 sq. ft. (Plinth Area) along with 1 open car parking,
  - Flat No E-7: 910 sq. ft. (Plinth Area) along with 1 open car parking,
  - Flat No I-5: 1225 sq. ft. (Plinth Area) along with 1 covered car parking in basement of building no 2.

## 3. FINANCIALS

## 3.1 Balance Sheet

All figures in Rs. crore

|                               | All figures in Rs. c                  |        |       |            |             |            |
|-------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--------|-------|------------|-------------|------------|
| Particulars                   | FY12                                  | FY13   | FY14  | FY15       | <b>FY16</b> | FY17       |
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        |                                       |        |       |            |             |            |
| Shareholders' Funds           |                                       |        |       |            |             |            |
| Share Capital                 | 35                                    | 35     | 35    | 35         | 35          | 35         |
| Reserves and Surplus          | 142                                   | 155    | 163   | 181        | 193         | 195        |
|                               | 177                                   | 190    | 198   | 216        | 228         | 230        |
| Non Current Liabilities       |                                       |        |       |            |             |            |
| Long - Term Borrowings        | -                                     | -      | -     | -          | -           | -          |
| Other Long - Term Liabilities | 119                                   | 368    | 183   | 252        | 346         | 468        |
| Long - Term Provisions        | 21                                    | 22     | 23    | 23         | 27          | 30         |
|                               | 140                                   | 390    | 206   | 275        | 373         | 498        |
| Current Liabilities           |                                       |        |       |            |             |            |
| Short Term Borrowings         | -                                     | _      | _     | -          | -           | -          |
| Trade Payables                | 237                                   | 267    | 393   | 406        | 282         | 466        |
| Other Current Liabilities     | 5,413*                                | 5,478* | 1,402 | 907        | 710         | 686        |
| Short Term Provisions         | 28                                    | 32     | 35    | 12         | 17          | 13         |
|                               | 5,678                                 | 5,777  | 1,830 | 1,325      | 1,009       | 1,165      |
| Total                         | 5,995                                 | 6,357  | 2,234 | 1,816      | 1,610       | 1,893      |
| ASSETS                        |                                       | - )    | , -   | )          | ,           | ,          |
| Non current assets            |                                       |        |       |            |             |            |
| Fixed assets                  |                                       |        |       |            |             |            |
| Tangible Assets               | 5                                     | 6      | 9     | 9          | 9           | 9          |
| Intangible Assets             | -                                     | -      | _     | _          | _           | 1          |
| Capital Work-in-Progress      | _                                     | _      | _     | _          | _           | _          |
| Intangible Assets Under       | _                                     | _      | _     | 1          | 1           | _          |
| Development Development       |                                       |        |       |            | 1           |            |
| Bevelopment                   | 5                                     | 6      | 9     | 10         | 10          | 10         |
| Non Current Investments       | -                                     | -      | _     | -          | -           | -          |
| Deferred Tax Assets (Net)     | 9                                     | 8      | 7     | 8          | 11          | 17         |
| Long Term Loans and Advances  | 206                                   | 400    | 166   | 228        | 293         | 472        |
| Other Non Current Assets      | 62                                    | 44     | 49    | 53         | 64          | 80         |
| other from earrent Assets     | 282                                   | 458    | 231   | <b>299</b> | 378         | <b>579</b> |
| Current assets                | 202                                   | 450    | 231   |            | 370         | 317        |
| Current Investments           | _                                     | _      | _     | _          | _           | _          |
| Inventories                   | 3,800*                                | 4,261* | 7     | 14         | 8           | 4          |
| Trade Receivables             | 162                                   | 106    | 253   | 295        | 171         | 310        |
| Cash and Bank Balances        | 282                                   | 147    | 166   | 204        | 307         | 297        |
| Short Term Loans and Advances | 260                                   | 375    | 539   | 413        | 333         | 340        |
| Other Current Assets          | 1,209                                 | 1,010  | 1,038 | 591        | 413         | 363        |
| Onici Current Assets          | 5,713                                 | 5,899  | 2,003 | 1,517      | 1,232       | 1,314      |
| Total                         | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | -      |       |            | -           |            |
| Total                         | 5,995                                 | 6,357  | 2,234 | 1,816      | 1,610       | 1,893      |

<sup>\*</sup> In FY 2014-15, the accounting policy with respect to WIP (Work in Progress) was modified to give a true and fair view of the financial statements. The effect of the same was incorporated starting from figures of FY 2013-14.

## 3.2 Profit & Loss Account

All figures in Rs. crore

|                               |      |      |      | 71    | in figures i | 11 1151 01 01 0 |
|-------------------------------|------|------|------|-------|--------------|-----------------|
| Particulars                   | FY12 | FY13 | FY14 | FY15  | FY16         | FY17            |
| Revenue From Operations       | 901  | 841  | 855  | 1,031 | 1,295        | 1,621           |
| Other Income                  | 37   | 44   | 35   | 27    | 28           | 34              |
| Total Income                  | 938  | 885  | 890  | 1,058 | 1,323        | 1,655           |
| Expenses:                     |      |      |      |       |              |                 |
| Operating Expenses            | 829  | 775  | 770  | 916   | 1,165        | 1,523           |
| Employee Remuneration and     | 45   | 50   | 58   | 69    | 78           | 78              |
| Benefits                      |      |      |      |       |              |                 |
| Finance Costs                 | 6    | 6    | 9    | 7     | 6            | 6               |
| Depreciation & Amortisation   | 1    | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1            | 1               |
| Expenses                      |      |      |      |       |              |                 |
| Other Expenses                | 20   | 21   | 26   | 24    | 35           | 43              |
| Total Expenses                | 901  | 853  | 864  | 1,017 | 1,285        | 1,651           |
| Profit before exceptional and | 36   | 32   | 26   | 41    | 38           | 4               |
| extraordinary items and tax   |      |      |      |       |              |                 |
| Exceptional Items             | -    | -    | -    | -     | -            | -               |
| Profit before Extraordinary   | 36   | 32   | 26   | 41    | 38           | 4               |
| Items and Tax                 |      |      |      |       |              |                 |
| Extraordinary Items           | -    | -    | -    | -     | -            | -               |
| Profit/(Loss) Before Tax      | 36   | 32   | 26   | 41    | 38           | 4               |
| Tax Expense                   |      |      |      |       |              |                 |
| Current Tax                   | 12   | 10   | 8    | 14    | 17           | 6               |
| Deferred Tax                  | -    | 1    | 1    | -     | -3           | -6              |
| Tax for Previous year         | -    | -    | -    | -     | -            | 1               |
| Profit For the Year           | 24   | 21   | 17   | 27    | 24           | 3               |

Contingent Liabilites as on 31st March 2017 is Rs. 560 crore against which Company has corresponding counter claims

## 4 INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

According to Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP), Indian construction industry is valued at over USD 126 billion and contributes towards 8% of the Indian GDP. The sector is the second largest employer and contributor to economic activity, after agriculture sector. It accounts for second highest inflow of FDI after the services sector and employs more than 35 Million people. Total FDI in the construction sector, from April 2000 - March 2016 stood at US\$ 24.19 billion. 50% of the demand for construction activity in India comes from the infrastructure sector, the rest comes from industrial activities, residential and commercial development etc.

The industry is expected to grow at a CAGR of 10-12% between 2016-17 and 2020-21 as opposed to low single digit growth observed between 2012 and 2015. Majority of this growth is expected to come from the infrastructure sector that shall present opportunities constituting ~90% of the overall expected construction spend. This growth is largely on account of central government's continued focus on roads, urban infrastructure, ports, power generation, transmission and railways. The Government of India along with the governments of the respective states has taken several initiatives like 'The Smart City Project' and 'Make in India Initiatives' to encourage the development in the sector. This includes development of 500 cities, each with a population of more than 100,000 and some cities of religious and tourist importance, through Public Private Partnerships ("**PPPs**").

According to recent data released by Central Statistics Office, GVA at basic prices for 2016-17 from 'Construction' sector is estimated to grow by 3.5 percent at current prices. Key indicators of construction sector, namely, production of cement and consumption of finished steel registered growth rates of (-) 1.3 per cent and 3.0 percent, respectively, during 2016-17.

### **Key industry characteristics**

- <u>Major Employment Generator</u> Construction industry accounts for ~8% of India's annual GDP and offers employment to millions of skilled and unskilled labourers both directly and indirectly in key labour intensive supplier industries of steel and cement.
- Fragmented Industry Structure The industry has lower entry barriers and limited capital requirement to set up an EPC or PMC company, enabling several small companies to start business by hiring talented engineers required to carry-out business activities. The industry is constituted by both private and government players with government entities largely set up to cater to infrastructural requirements of the country.
- <u>Low working capital requirements</u> PMC industry has a negative working capital cycle as the advance is received for the execution of construction contract from the party awarding the contract while payments are released to EPC companies for construction on achieving milestones.

- <u>High intensity of competition</u> Due to presence of several small companies which house talented pool of engineers, there is high intensity of competition. However, as bidding remains the most preferred way of choosing a contractor, competition can be limited by way of putting minimum qualifying criteria, while inviting bids, in the form of financial health of the company, years of experience, order book size, sector experience, etc. Further, in case of government agencies awarding work, large contracts are often awarded via nomination to government owned PMC and EPC companies such as HPL, HSCC, NBCC, etc.
- <u>Susceptible to external environment</u> The completion of a project is often subjected to receiving multiple approvals from several central and state regulatory bodies such as pollution boards, airport authority, Ministry of Environment, Ministry of Forest, etc. Receiving such approvals in a timely manner is a major hurdle for most projects. Further, land acquisition also poses a problem at times due to unfair compensation offered to the land owners that can lead to stalling the project after it has started from the protesting land owners and activists.

### Major growth drivers of industry for EPI

EPI is likely to benefit from specific missions of the Central Government that aim to increase the highways network, expand power generation capacity, address housing shortage and upgrade several cities to SMART cities. As EPI is an execution agency of industrial & construction projects involving civil and structural work across metallurgical sector, water supply and environment, housing, hospitals & institutional buildings, and coal & material handling systems, it would likely see a steady flow of contracts which will keep its order book and financial statements robust. EPI has completed 180 km (Phase I) and executing approx. 150 km (Phase II) of road in Oman and recently signed agreement with MEA for execution of highway project in Myanmar.

- <u>Urban housing</u> According to the 2011 census, the housing stock in urban India stood at 78.48 million for 78.86 million urban households. The gap between household and housing stock is continuously narrowing. For FY15, estimated housing shortage was 18.78 million houses for urban area and 14.8 million for rural area. Rural housing stock is expected to grow at a CAGR of 1.7-1.9% and urban housing stock is expected to grow at a CAGR of 3.0-4.0% over 2016-2019. The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs has recently sanctioned the construction of around 85,000 more affordable houses for urban poor in five states, namely West Bengal, Jharkhand, Punjab, Kerala and Manipur under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) scheme with a total investment of Rs 3,073 crore (US\$ 460 million). Significant increase in construction activities in two-tier cities has opened new avenues of growth for the sector.
- Expansion in Power Generation Capacity According to Central Electricity Authority, total installed capacity of Thermal, Hydro, Nuclear and Renewable Energy Sources in India stood at 3,29,205 MW as on April 30,17. With electricity production of 1,107.8 billion units (BU) in FY16, the country witnessed growth of around 5.64 % over the previous fiscal year. The Ministry of Power has set a target of 1,229.4 BU of electricity to be generated in the financial year 2017-18. Electricity production expanded at a CAGR of 6.21 % over FY10–16. The annual

growth rate in renewable energy generation has been estimated to be 27% and 18% for conventional energy. Power demand has increased rapidly and is expected to rise further in the years to come, driven by economic revival, improving dis-com financials and augmentation of Transmission & Distribution (T&D) infrastructure. In order to meet the increasing demand for electricity in the country, addition to the installed generating capacity is required which in turn will drive growth in power generation capacity across wind, hydro, coal and solar, among others. This growth in power generation plants will likely result in growth in order book for EPIL.

- Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) Housing for All by 2022 Launched on 25<sup>th</sup> June 2015, PMAY anticipates construction of 2 crore housing units till 2022 in the economically weaker section (EWS) and low-income group (LIG) segments. The RBI is assisting this mission by offering interest rate subvention of housing loans for such housing units. The scheme will be implemented in three phases:
  - Phase 1 April 2015 to March 2017 to cover 100 cities selected from states/urban territories,
  - Phase 2 April 2017 to March 2019, to cover additional 200 cities,
  - Phase 3 April 2019 to March 2022, to cover all other remaining cities.
- Smart Cities Mission In June 2015, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs laid down the guidelines for formulation, approval and execution of projects under the Smart City Mission which will cover 100 cities by 2019-20. The Government of India has earmarked Rs 50,000 crore (US\$ 7.34 billion) to develop 100 smart cities across the country, which shall be deployed into construction activities such as real estate development, transportation, energy, water supply, sanitation, IT & communications, education & health centres and public security. India's Smart City plan is part of a larger agenda of creating Industrial Corridors between India's big metropolitan cities. These include the Delhi-Mumbai Industrial Corridor, the Chennai-Bangalore Industrial Corridor and the Bangalore-Mumbai Economic Corridor. The Delhi-Mumbai Industrial Corridor (DMIC), which is spread across six states, seeks to create seven new smart cities as the nodes of the corridor in its first phase.
- <u>Highways Network Expansion</u> The Central government is aiming to grow the 4/6-lane Highways network in India by expanding the current 2-lane network. Recent models such as the Hybrid Annuity Model (HAM), which reduce risk taken by developers compared to the Build-Operate- Transfer (BOT) model, will give a boost to road construction.
- Rising Gross Capital Formation in Infrastructure (GCFI) GCFI has steadily grown in India driven by rising investments in infrastructure across roads, ports, power generation, urban infrastructure, water treatment and sanitation. GSFI's share in GDP has also grown over the years. Looking ahead, with steady GDP growth forecasts and continuing investments in India's infrastructure driven by proactive policy making, opportunities for EPC/PMC contracts will continue to grow.

• Government's focus on healthcare — In 2017-18 budget, the government increased the allocation to healthcare which in absolute terms represents a y-o-y increase of 22%. The government is likely to maintain this strong focus on healthcare going forward, increasing opportunities for EPI to bag contracts for hospital and other healthcare infrastructure creation.

## 5 SUBMISSION OF EOI

Any interested bidder ("Interested Bidder" or "IB"), participating in the transaction has to submit an EoI. Details regarding the Transaction process, list of important documents to be submitted along with the EoI, eligibility criteria for the IB, disqualification of the IB and other general instructions have been shared in the following sections.

## 5.1 Transaction process

- 5.1.1 An advertisement has been issued in the newspapers inviting IBs to submit their EoI to participate in the Transaction. A copy of the advertisement is enclosed as Annexure I.
- 5.1.2 The process for the Transaction has been divided into two stages, namely, Stage I and Stage II as follows.

## 5.1.3 **Stage I**:

- 5.1.3.1 Through this PIM, the GoI is providing the IB with instructions for submitting its EoI, which would be used for prequalifying the IB in accordance with the criteria specified to proceed with the Transaction.
- 5.1.3.2 Following receipt of PIM, IB will be required to respond with the EoI (as per the format in Annexure II) along with documents as detailed in this PIM along with a non-refundable fee of Rs. 1,00,000 (rupees one lac). It may please be noted that this fee will not be refunded even in case the Transaction is called-off by the GoI.
- 5.1.3.3 The EoI will then be evaluated based on the Eligibility Criteria and Disqualification conditions detailed in this PIM. Only shortlisted IBs will be notified.

### 5.1.4 **Stage II**:

- 5.1.4.1 Based on the evaluation of the EoIs submitted in Stage I, the shortlisted IB will be provided with Request for Proposal ("**RFP**") and a Confidential Information Memorandum ("**CIM**"), which shall provide further details of the Company and the Transaction subject to the IB entering into a Confidentiality Undertaking as enclosed in Annexure III.
- 5.1.4.2 The shortlisted IB proceeding to Stage II will be given access to the data room to review documents pertaining to the Company for conducting due diligence on the Company, subject to the IB entering into a Confidentiality Undertaking in terms of the RFP.
- 5.1.4.3 The format and formalities related to the RFP will be communicated in due-course.
- 5.1.5 This PIM along with annexures will be available on the following websites:
  - www.yesbank.in
  - http://dipam.gov.in/
  - http://dhi.nic.in/
  - www.engineeringprojects.com

- 5.1.6 This PIM does not constitute any commitment on the part of GoI or any of their respective officers, employees, advisors or agents, whether in respect of the disinvestment process or otherwise. This PIM and invitation for submission of EoIs neither confers any right nor expectation to any other subsequent additions and modifications thereof.
- 5.1.7 GoI reserves the right to withdraw from the Transaction or to accept or reject any or all EoIs or financial bids at any stage of the Transaction and modify the process or any part thereof or to vary any terms at any time without assigning any reason whatsoever. In such an event no financial obligation whatsoever shall accrue to GoI or any of its respective officers, employees, advisors or agents.
- 5.1.8 The Transaction will be subject to applicable statutory and regulatory restrictions and approval requirements.
- 5.1.9 A site visit may be scheduled to facilitate the shortlisted IB in its assessment of the Company at the discretion of the GoI. The modalities related to the site visit and due diligence will be communicated to the shortlisted IB in due course.
- 5.1.10 The shortlisted IB shall carry out its own due diligence, independent assessment and appraisal of the Company and the Transaction. The GoI or its respective consultants, agents, officials, advisors and employees make no representations, and in relation thereto shall not be liable in any manner whatsoever.
- 5.1.11 EoI is liable to be rejected by GoI/Transaction Advisor if IB fails to meet the eligibility criteria as specified in section titled 'Eligibility Criteria' and/or is disqualified in accordance with the conditions specified in section titled 'Disqualifications' in this PIM.

## 5.2 Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility Criteria for the Interested Bidder to move to Stage II shall be the following:

### 5.2.1 **Ownership**

As on March 31, 2017, an IB must be a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) as classified by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises, Government of India. CPSE, as defined by DPE, is any government company in which more than 50% equity is held by the Central Government. The subsidiaries of these companies in which any CPSE has more than 50% equity are also categorized as CPSE, if registered in India.\*

\* Definition as per Public Enterprises Survey 2015-16 Chapter 1 Performance Overview (Page 1) http://dpe.gov.in/sites/default/files/PES\_Annual\_Report\_English.pdf

(IB to provide an undertaking as per Annexure IV.)

## 5.2.2 Financial Capability

5.2.2.1 IB must have net worth, on a consolidated basis, of not less than Rs. 500 crore (Rupees Five Hundred crore) as per the audited financial statements ending 31st March 2017. The definition of Net Worth is as follows and is as per Clause 57 of Section 2, Companies Act, 2013:

Net Worth = aggregate value of the paid-up share capital + all reserves\* created out of the profits and securities premium account – aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off.

(IB to provide details as per Annexure V.)

\*Reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation are not to be included.

Provided that, in the event the Interested Bidder does not have audited financial statements as on March 31, 2017, Net Worth as per provisional financial accounts for the Interested Bidder as certified by its statutory auditor/Board of Director may be considered.

5.2.2.2 IB must have reported a positive net profit after tax (as per consolidated profit and loss account) in at least three out of last five audited financial statements (FY 2013, FY 2014, FY 2015, FY 2016 and FY 2017).

(IB to provide details as per Annexure VI)

## 5.3 Instructions to IB

- 5.3.1 Each IB will submit duly filled EoI (as per the format in Annexure II).
- 5.3.2 Each IB must provide with the EoI a Power of Attorney (as per the format in Annexure VII).
- 5.3.3 Each IB must provide with the EoI a Statement of Legal Capacity (as per the format in Annexure VIII), duly executed by its authorized official/ representative that it has the requisite corporate authorization to submit the EoI and that all information provided in the EoI is complete and accurate in all material respects to the best of their knowledge.
- 5.3.4 Each IB must provide with the EoI, completely filled Form A (as per the format in Annexure IX), along with the other requisite information as detailed below:
  - Memorandum and Articles of Association or other Constitution Documents; and
  - A certificate duly signed by the company Secretary/any other officer in charge of legal affairs stating that the IB is eligible to participate in the Transaction as per its Memorandum and Articles of Association (or any Constitution Document); and
  - Audited consolidated financial statements and annual reports for the last three financial years; and
  - Details of shareholding pattern with summary certification of the shareholding as per the format in Annexure IV; and

- Certificate from a chartered accountant/ statutory auditor certifying the Net Worth (as per format in Annexure V); and
- Certificate from a chartered accountant/ statutory auditor certifying the Net Profit (as per format in Annexure VI); and
- A brief profile write up of the IB containing details related to IB's:
  - o Business history and growth,
  - Business Areas and Activities,
  - Brief commentary on the capability of the IB as demonstrated, inter alia, in its past track record to run its own business; and
- List of board of directors and senior management along with the organization structure and a brief summary certified by the company secretary/any other official in charge of legal affairs; and
- A brief summary of the roles and responsibilities of the directors and key management personnel duly certified by the company secretary/any other official in charge of legal affairs; and
- The names and addresses of the companies and professional firms, if any, who are (or will be) advising the IB, together with the names of the principal individual advisors at those companies and firms; and
- Brief write up of the IB of its international operations, joint ventures / alliances (whether
  international or domestic), nature and size of such operations, equity ownership, if
  applicable, copies of the audited accounts for the last one year of such companies; and
- Details of all outstanding litigations; and
- Details of all contingent liabilities that, if materialised, that have or would reasonably be
  expected to have a material adverse effect on the business, operations (or results of
  operations), assets, liabilities and/or financial condition of the Interested Bidder, or other
  similar business combination or sale; and
- Date and place of incorporation, registered office address, head office address; and
- Name, address, telephone and facsimile numbers, e-mail address and the names and the titles of the persons who are the principal points of contact.

- 5.3.5 Each IB must provide with the EoI a Confidentiality Undertaking (as per the format in Annexure III).
- 5.3.6 Each IB must provide with the EoI a Declaration (as per the format in Annexure X).
- 5.3.7 All costs associated with the preparation and submission of the EoI, due diligence, site visits (if any) will be borne by the respective IB. The Transaction Advisor/GoI shall not, under any circumstances be responsible or liable for any such costs, whether direct, incidental or consequential.
- 5.3.8 The GoI/Transaction Advisor reserves the right to call for any additional document/information from the IB, which may be considered necessary without any liability to the Company/GoI.
- 5.3.9 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this PIM, the detailed terms specified in the definitive agreements (including Share Purchase Agreements) shall have overriding effect; provided, however, that any conditions or obligations imposed on the IB hereunder shall continue to have effect in addition to its obligations under the definitive agreements.
- 5.3.10 **Enquiry**: Transaction Advisor reserves the right, in its sole discretion, not to respond to any questions raised or provide clarifications sought. Nothing in this section shall be taken or read as compelling or requiring the Transaction Advisor to respond to any question or provide any clarification. No extension of any time and date referred to in this PIM shall be granted on the basis or grounds that the Transaction Advisor has not responded to any question or provided any clarification.
- 5.3.11 **Governing Law / Jurisdiction**: The Transaction and all matters incidental thereto shall be governed by the laws of India. All disputes arising out of the Transaction shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts at New Delhi.
- 5.3.12 Any withdrawal of the EoI by IB or any substitution in the EoI by IB or additional information supplied by IB, unless the same has been expressly sought for by GoI/Transaction Advisor, shall be disregarded.
- 5.3.13 The IB shall be expected to provide certificates, undertakings, bank guarantees, or such similar documents for such amounts and on such terms and conditions prior to submission of the financial bid in Stage II as may be informed by the GoI.
- 5.3.14 The IB shall be required to deposit an earnest money at Stage II, if so required by GoI. The draft of the earnest money guarantee agreement, if any, shall be provided to the IB at the time of providing all other draft documents before submission of financial bid in Stage II, if required by the GoI.
- 5.3.15 The GoI or its advisors reserve the right to verify all statements, information and documents submitted by the IB in response to the PIM, or the EoI process and the IB shall, when so required by the GoI/Transaction Advisor, make available all such information, evidence and documents as may be necessary for such verification. Any such verification or lack of such verification, by the GoI or its advisors shall not relieve the IB of its obligations or liabilities hereunder nor will it affect any rights of the GoI thereunder.

- 5.3.16 The GoI or its advisors reserve the right to seek any additional indemnities, warranties, representations or performance obligations to its satisfaction from the IB or any of its related entities.
- 5.3.17 The IB shall continue to meet with the eligibility criteria and shall also not be disqualified as per conditions mentioned in this PIM at all times until the consummation of the Transaction.
- 5.3.18 **Amendment to PIM**: At any time prior to the Due Date of EoI, GoI may, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to clarifications requested by any IB, modify the PIM by the issuance of addendum.
- 5.3.19 The IB shall be responsible for obtaining all the applicable approvals to complete the Transaction within a specified time limit. For the purpose of this Transaction, the IB shall ascertain the applicability and implications of all laws pertaining to the Transaction and shall ensure compliance with all the applicable laws.

## 5.4 Filling Requirements

- 5.4.1 IB shall ensure that the EoI is complete as to requirements of the specified documents/information as instructed in this PIM.
- 5.4.2 The EoI must be signed by a duly authorized representative of the interested party. The IB shall also be required to submit a Power of Attorney (Annexure VII) authorizing the signatory of the EoI to commit the IB.
- 5.4.3 The signed EoI as per the format in Annexure II along with all its annexures and supporting documents as detailed in the table below must be submitted in physical form only not later than the Due Date in two envelopes at the following addresses:

Mr. Karandeep Singh,

Assistant Vice President, YES Bank

48, Nyaya Marg, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110 021

|          | • Expression of interest (Annexure II)   |
|----------|--|
|          | Confidentiality Undertaking (Annexure III)                                     |
|          | CPSE Declaration and Shareholding Certificate (Annexure IV)                    |
|          | CPSE Declaration of Net Worth (Annexure V)                                     |
| Envolono | CPSE Declaration of Net Profit (Annexure VI)                                   |
| Envelope | • Executed POA (Annexure VII)  |
| 1        | Statement of Legal Capacity (Annexure VIII)                                    |
|          | Request For Qualification (Annexure IX)  |
|          | • Declaration (Annexure X)   |
|          | • demand draft of non-refundable fee amounting to Rs. 1,00,000 in favor of YES |
|          | Bank – EPI   |

Additional documents and details such as

- Annual reports (previous 3 financial years )
- Memorandum of association
- Articles of association

## Envelope 2

- Share holding pattern, certificate stating the eligibility to participate in the Transaction, nature of business and information of operations, list of board of directors and senior management, write up on international operations, joint ventures / alliances and copies of the audited financial statements, list of advisors, details of all outstanding litigations, details of all contingent liabilities, and supporting documents for date and place of incorporation, date of Commencement of Certificate, full address of registered office and head office as part of Request for Qualification (Annexure IX)
- 5.4.4 The covering envelope containing the above mentioned envelope 1 and envelope 2 must be clearly marked "Private and Confidential Expression of Interest for the strategic disinvestment of Engineering Projects (India) Limited".
- 5.4.5 IB shall be entitled to submit only one EoI. In case, more than one EoI is submitted by an IB, all such EoIs shall be rejected.
- 5.4.6 The EoI received shall be valid for 180 days from the date of opening of the EoI.
- 5.4.7 Any submission whether in part or full via email or facsimile will not be permitted. Any document received after the Due Date, unless the same is expressly sought, will be disregarded. Any submission made shall be rejected if it is not made as per the instructions mentioned in this PIM.
- 5.4.8 Unless otherwise specified, a self -certified true copy by IB's authorized signatory of the supporting documents shall be submitted.
- 5.4.9 The documents including this PIM and all attached documents are and shall remain or become the properties of the GoI and are transmitted to the IB solely for the purpose of preparation and the submission of EoI in accordance herewith. IB is to treat all information as strictly confidential and shall not use it for any purpose other than for preparation and submission of its EoI.
- 5.4.10 Transaction Advisor/GoI shall bear no responsibility for non-receipt of documents sent by post/courier.

## 5.5 **Disqualification**

- 5.5.1 An EoI that is found to be incomplete in content and/or attachments and/or legal capacity/authenticity shall be rejected.
- 5.5.2 Without prejudice to any other rights or remedies available to GoI, the GoI / Transaction Advisor reserve the right to reject the EoI and disqualify any IB for any of the following reasons (including but not limited to those listed below):

- Misrepresentation/false statement is made by the IB, at any stage in the bidding process, whether in the EoI, the financial bid, supporting documentation or otherwise and whether written or oral.
- If the EoI submitted by the IB is in any respect inconsistent with, or demonstrates any failure to comply with, the provisions of the PIM.
- Failure on the part of the parties interested to provide necessary and sufficient information required to be provided in accordance with the EoI.
- Submission of more than one (1) EoI by any IB in which case, all such EoIs shall be rejected.
- The IB not satisfying the eligibility criteria specified in this PIM.
- Failure to comply with any reasonable request, of GoI / Transaction Advisor in relation to the Transaction.
- If it is discovered at any time that the IB is subjected to any winding up/insolvency proceedings or other proceedings of a similar nature.
- Any information regarding or in connection with the IB which becomes known that is detrimental to the national security and/or public interest and/or national interest and/or Transaction and/or the interests of the GoI/ Company.
- Initiation or existence of any legal proceedings, by or against the IB in respect of the EPI, which proceeding may be prejudiced by the participation of the IB in the selection process or the Transaction.
- Non fulfilment of any condition by the IB as specified in the PIM.
- Breach of Confidentiality Undertaking executed by the IB.
- Any condition or qualification or any other stipulation inserted by the IB contained in the EoI shall render the EoI liable to rejection.
- Any IB who does not satisfy the requirements of eligibility or is disqualified under the Eligibility Guidelines. The GoI has issued guidelines for disqualification of bidders seeking to acquire any public sector enterprises through the process of disinvestment vide Department of Disinvestment OM No.6/4/2001 DD-II dated 13th July 2001, and clarification issued on 10th January 2002, as may be modified from time to time ("Eligibility Guidelines"). A copy of the Eligibility Guidelines is enclosed as Annexure XI.
- If the IB does not satisfy any of the requirements as may be issued by the GoI by way of notifications / issue of guidelines / circulars or such similar notifications from time to time including any conditions of disqualifications, the EoI submitted by such IB shall be disqualified.

- 5.5.3 Notwithstanding anything contained in this PIM, the GoI reserves the right to reject any/all the EoIs and/or to annul the EoI process at any time without any liability or any obligation for such acceptance, rejection or annulment, and without assigning any reasons thereof. In the event that the GoI rejects or annuls all the EoIs, it may, in its discretion, invite all eligible IBs to submit fresh EoI hereunder.
- 5.5.4 GoI's/YES Bank's determination that one or more of the events specified in this section titled "Disqualification" has occurred shall be final and conclusive.

## **ANNEXURES**

Annexure I

INVITATION FOR EXPRESSION OF INTEREST BY THE GOVERNMENT OF INDIA FOR STRATEGIC DISINVESTMENT IN ENGINEERING PROJECTS INDIA LIMITED BY WAY OF ACQUISITION BY A SIMILARLY PLACED CPSE

(This announcement is neither a prospectus nor an offer/invitation to the public for sale of shares, securities or debentures to the public.)

Engineering Projects India Limited ("EPI" or the "Company") is a public sector undertaking, under the administrative control of the Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises. The Company was incorporated in the year 1970 with the main objective to undertake turnkey projects and consultancy services in India and abroad.

The Government of India (GoI) has 'in-principle' decided to disinvest 100.00% of its equity shareholding in EPI along with transfer of management control through a competitive bidding process by way of acquisition by a similarly placed CPSE through sale of Equity Shares. The GoI, through the Department of Investment & Public Asset Management has appointed YES Bank Limited ("YES Bank") as its Advisor to advise and manage the Strategic Disinvestment of EPI ("Transaction").

This disinvestment process is to be implemented through physical open competitive bidding route. Accordingly, Expression of Interest (EoI) is invited through this advertisement from Interested Bidders. The details of EoI can be downloaded from www.yesbank.in, http://dipam.gov.in/, www.engineeringprojects.com, http://dhi.nic.in/. In future, any amendments/ extension of Due Date for submission of EoI will be uploaded on the above websites only.

Interested Bidders are requested to submit their EoI along with the documents in the prescribed format specified in the Preliminary Information Memorandum (PIM) at the under-mentioned address, not later than 1500 hours (IST) on 08 November 2017. Further any queries or request for clarification/additional information concerning the PIM shall be submitted to the under-mentioned address. The communications shall clearly bear the following identification / title: Query: PIM – EPI.

Mr. Karandeep Singh,
YES Bank Limited, 48, Nyaya Marg, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110 021
Email: karandeep.singh3@yesbank.in
Tel: +91 11 6656 9000

This advertisement does not constitute, and will not be deemed to constitute, any commitment on the part of EPI or GoI or YES Bank; it has been provided only by way of information on EPI. Furthermore, this advertisement confers neither the right nor an expectation on any party to participate in the proposed disinvestment. GoI or YES Bank reserves the right to withdraw from the process or any part thereof, to accept or reject any or all offers at any stage of the process and/or modify the process or any part thereof or to vary terms at any time without assigning any reason whatsoever. No financial obligation will accrue to GoI or YES Bank in such an event. Further, EPI or GoI or YES Bank shall not be responsible for non-receipt of correspondence sent by post/courier/e-mail/fax.

**Annexure II** 

## Expression of Interest (To be printed on the letterhead of the interested party submitting the EoI)

| (To be printed on the letterhead of the interested party submitting the EoI)   |
|--|
| Date:  |
| <b>Ref:</b> [x] To,  |
| Mr. Karandeep Singh,<br>YES Bank   |
| 48, Nyaya Marg, Chanakyapuri,<br>New Delhi - 110 021   |
| Sub: INVITATION OF EXPRESSION OF INTEREST FOR STRATEGIC DISINVESTMENT OF 100% SHAREHOLDING OF GoI IN ENGINEERING PROJECTS (INDIA) LIMITED ("EPI")  BY WAY OF ACQUISITION BY A SIMILARLY PLACED CPSE  |
| Sir/Madam,   |
| This is with reference to the advertisement dated 12 October 2017 ("Advertisement") inviting Expression of Interest ("Eol") for the strategic divestment of such number of Equity Shares representing 100%* stake in EPI, a company registered under the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at Core-3, Scope Complex, 7- Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003 ("Strategic Disinvestment"). |
| Being duly authorized to represent and act on behalf of (hereinafter referred to as the "Interested Bidder"), and having reviewed and fully understood all of the qualification requirements and information provided, the undersigned hereby expresses the Interested Bidder's interest for bidding for the Strategic Disinvestment.  |
| We have read and understood the contents of the Advertisement and the Preliminary Information Memorandum ("PIM") and are desirous of participating in the Strategic Disinvestment and undertake as follows:  |

- 1. We are interested in bidding for the Strategic Disinvestment of such number of Equity Shares representing hundred (100%)\* of the equity share capital of EPIL held by Government of India.
- 2. We satisfy the eligibility criteria detailed in the Advertisement and the PIM.
- 3. We confirm and represent that we have the requisite corporate authorisation to submit the EoI.

- 4. We certify that in regard to matters other than security and integrity of the country, we have not been convicted by any court of law or indicted or adverse orders passed by any regulatory authority which relates to a grave offence that outrages the moral sense of the community.
- 5. We further certify that in regard to matters relating to security and integrity of the country, we have not been charge-sheeted by any agency of the Government or convicted by any court of law for any offence committed by us or by any of our sister concerns.
- 6. We further certify that no investigation by a regulatory authority is pending either against us or against our group concerns or against any of our directors or key managerial personnel.
- 7. We confirm and represent that the EoI is complete and accurate in all respects and requisite authorization has been obtained for the submission of the EoI.
- 8. In the event we are attracted by any of the disqualifications in terms of the PIM during the pendency of the process of Strategic Disinvestment, owing to change in facts or circumstances, we undertake to immediately intimate the Transaction Advisor and the Nodal Agency.
- 9. The declaration in respect of pending litigation as per format given in Annexure X duly signed by us is enclosed.
- 10. The Statement of Legal Capacity and Request For Qualification as per formats given in Annexure VIII and Annexure IX respectively of PIM, duly signed by us are enclosed.

We further understand that the information and data received by us for this transaction is confidential and shall not be divulged or disclosed or reproduced or disseminated, in whole or part, to any person or entity except to our directors, officers, employees and professional advisers who need to know the information for the purpose of evaluating the transaction. We shall use the confidential information only for the purpose of the Transaction.

| Our PAN number is Our TAN number is                             |
|---|
| Thank you.<br>Yours sincerely,                                  |
| Yours faithfully,   |
| Authorised Signatory For and on behalf of the Interested Bidder |
| Name of the Person: [●]   |
| Designation: [●]  |
| Enclosed:   |

- 1. Confidentiality Undertaking (Annexure III)
- 2. POA (Annexure VII)
- 3. Statement of Legal Capacity (Annexure VIII)
- 4. Request For Proposal (Annexure IX)
- 5. Declaration (Annexure X)
- 6. Demand Draft

<sup>\* 99.98%</sup> shares are held by GoI and 0.02% of EPI's shares are held by 6 PSUs (Heavy Engineering Corporation Limited, Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited, Mining & Allied Machinery Corporation Limited, Triveni Structurals Limited, Instrumentation Limited, and Hindustan Steelworks Construction) and a trust on behalf of these PSUs.

**Annexure III** 

Confidentiality Undertaking

### [ON RS. 1000 STAMP PAPER]

#### DEED OF CONFIDENTIALITY UNDERTAKING

This **DEED OF CONFIDENTIALITY UNDERTAKING** ("**Undertaking**") is made on this [●] day of [●], 2017.

| BY               |                        |                              |                        |      |
|------------------|------------------------|------------------------------|------------------------|------|
|                  |                        | ,                            | a company incorporated |      |
| Companies Act, [ | [1956/2013] bearing of | corporate identification num | ber                    | and  |
| having           | its                    | registered                   | office                 | at   |
| "Interested Bidd | er");                  |                              |                        | (the |
| IN FAVOUR OF:    | :                      |                              |                        |      |

The President of India, represented by and acting through the Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises at Udyog Bhawan, Raisina Road, New Delhi - 110 011 (the "Administrative Ministry"); and

Engineering Projects India Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, in 1970 bearing corporate identification number U27109DL1970GOI117585 and having its registered office at Core-3, Scope Complex, 7 Lodhi Road, New Delhi–110003 (the "Company").

The Entities whose names and particulars listed in Schedule 1 (hereinafter referred to as "Advisors")

### **WHEREAS:**

- A. The Interested Bidder has submitted an expression of interest for participation in the proposed disinvestment by Government of India ("GoI"/"Government") of 100 percent of the equity shares of the Company held by the GoI (the "Transaction") and has been shortlisted as a "Qualified Interested Party"; and
- B. In the context of the Interested Bidder's interest in the Transaction, the Disclosing Party (as defined hereinafter) may disclose Confidential Information (as defined hereinafter) to the Receiving Party (as defined hereinafter) to enable the Interested Bidder to evaluate the Transaction.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration for receiving the Confidential Information, the Interested Bidder hereby executes this Undertaking and undertakes, represents, warrants, covenants and agrees to the terms and conditions contained herein:

1. In this Undertaking (including the recitals);

"**Advisors**" means, collectively, Yes Bank Limited, Protocol Insurance Surveyors & Loss Assessors Pvt Ltd and M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co.

"Confidential Information" means and includes any and all facts, knowledge, information, documents and materials whether written or otherwise, concerning the business, operations, prospects, finances, or other affairs of the Company, its affiliates, associates or subsidiaries (which includes, without limitation, documents delivered in connection with due diligence, investigation, information relating to the existing business of the Company and new businesses (if any) proposed to be undertaken by the Company, market and company-specific data, agreements related to its business including knowhow and technology agreements, agreements relating to licence to use intellectual property rights, graphs, drawing, past, current, and planned research and development, current and planned marketing or distribution methods and processes, customer lists, current and anticipated customer requirements, price lists and other end-user pricing related information, market studies, computer software and programs, database technologies, systems, structures and architectures, historical financial statements, activities, products, specifications, data, know- how, compositions, designs, sketches, photographs, business plans, financial projections and budgets, historical and projected sales, capital spending budgets and plans, current or prospective financing sources, the names and backgrounds of personnel, personnel training techniques and materials, reports relating to the Company's operations prepared by external consultants which are proprietary to the Company or the GoI or the Administrative Ministry), and any information memorandum /or draft /final offer document, request for proposal, drafts of shareholders and share purchase agreements or other materials prepared in connection with the Transaction, howsoever documented, that has been or may hereafter be provided or shown to the Receiving Party by the Disclosing Party or is otherwise obtained from review of the Disclosing Party's documents or property or discussions with the Disclosing Party by the Receiving Party irrespective of the form of the communication, and also includes all notes, analyses, compilations, studies, summaries, and other material prepared by the Receiving Party containing or based, in whole or in part, on any information included in the foregoing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following information will not constitute "Confidential Information" for purposes of this Undertaking:

- (a) Information which the Interested Bidder can prove was already in the possession of the Receiving Party and was available to the Receiving Party on a non-confidential basis prior to its disclosure to the Receiving Party by the Disclosing Party;
- (b) Information which is obtained by the Receiving Party from a third Person who, insofar as is known to the Receiving Party, is not prohibited from disclosing the information to the

Receiving party under a contractual, legal or fiduciary obligation to the Disclosing Party; and

(c) Information which is or becomes generally available to the public otherwise than as a result of a breach of this Undertaking by the Receiving Party.

The decision of the Government and/or the Company on whether any information qualifies within the exceptions in (a), (b) and (c) above shall be final, conclusive and binding.

"**Disclosing Party**" means the Advisors, the Company, the Administrative Ministry, the GoI, other Governmental Authority and/or their respective Representatives, whether jointly or severally.

"Governmental Authority" means any governmental or regulatory authority, government ministry or department in India or other rule or regulation making entity having jurisdiction or acting on behalf of the Republic of India or any political subdivision thereof.

"Receiving Party" means the Interested Bidder and/or their respective Representatives, whether jointly or severally.

"Representative(s)" of any Person includes the directors, officers, employees, agents, consultants, advisors, lenders for financing of this Transaction or other representatives, including legal counsel, accountants and financial advisors of such Person and also includes the Representatives of the Representatives of any Person.

"Person" means any individual, company (including the Company and the Advisors), firm, association, trust, or any other organization or entity (including the Government and any governmental or political subdivision).

- 2. The Confidential Information disclosed by the Disclosing Party to the Receiving Party, or acquired by the Receiving Party in the course of any studies conducted by the Receiving Party, will be received and treated by the Receiving Party as strictly confidential, subject to its obligations contained herein, and the Receiving Party shall not, without the Company's as well as the Government's prior written consent or as expressly permitted herein, directly or indirectly disclose to any other Person, or use or allow others to disclose or use, the Confidential Information.
- 3. The Receiving Party will use the Confidential Information only to evaluate the Transaction and to decide whether or not the Interested Bidder wishes to proceed with the Transaction and not for any purpose other than the Transaction and the Receiving Party will not directly or indirectly use the Confidential Information for any other purpose or in any way detrimental to the Disclosing Party.
- 4. In consideration of the Disclosing Party providing the Receiving Party with Confidential Information, by the Interested Bidder's execution of this Undertaking, the Interested Bidder, for itself and on behalf of all other Receiving Party, agrees that all of the Confidential Information shall be held and treated by the Receiving Party in strict confidence. The Bidder agrees (a) to disclose Confidential Information only to those of its Representatives who need to know the Confidential

Information for the purposes of an evaluation of the Transaction and each Representative of the Interested Bidder will be informed and advised in writing by the Interested Bidder of the confidential nature of such information and the contents of and the obligations under this Undertaking and (b) to satisfy itself that each such Representative of the Interested Bidder will hold and treat the Confidential Information in confidence and act in accordance therewith. The Interested Bidder agrees that the Confidential Information shall not, without the Company's as well as the Government's prior written consent, be disclosed by the Interested Bidder and/or Representative of the Interested Bidder, in any manner whatsoever, in whole or in part, to any third Person, and shall not be used by the Interested Bidder or Representative of the Interested Bidder other than in connection with an evaluation of the Transaction.

The Interested Bidder recognises and acknowledges the competitive value and confidential nature of the Confidential Information and the possible resultant impact to the Company and the Government if the Confidential Information is disclosed or allowed to be disclosed to an unauthorised party or used for any purpose other than evaluating the Transaction. The Interested Bidder acknowledges and agrees that it is imperative that all Confidential Information remains confidential.

The Interested Bidders, before disclosing any of the Confidential Information to any of its Representative(s) shall ensure that its Representative(s) have read and understood this Undertaking and have agreed in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions contained herein.

Notwithstanding any agreement or undertaking, the Interested Bidder agrees that it shall continue to be responsible and liable for any breach of this Undertaking even though the same is caused by any act or omission of any Representative of the Interested Bidder and shall indemnify and hold the Government, the Company, and the Advisors harmless (including provisions of clause 6 and 15 set forth herein) from any breach of this Undertaking or consequences and claims arising therefrom.

- 5. Except as permitted by Clause 4 herein and except as expressly permitted by a definitive share purchase agreement, if any, entered into by the Interested Bidder, the Receiving Party will not directly or indirectly disclose to any Person the fact that the Confidential Information has been made available to the Receiving Party or that the Receiving Party have inspected any portion of the Confidential Information. Except with the prior written consent of the Company and the Government, and except as expressly permitted by such definitive share purchase agreement, the Receiving Party will not directly or indirectly disclose to any Person the fact that any discussions or negotiations are taking place concerning the Transaction, including the status and content of such discussions or negotiations.
- 6. On acquiring the Confidential Information on the terms stated in this Undertaking or otherwise, the Receiving Party shall comply with all applicable law, and the Interested Bidder hereby jointly and severally indemnifies and agrees to hold the Advisors, the Government and the Company indemnified and harmless (without prejudice to Clause 15 set forth below) against all and any consequences arising from any violation by the Receiving Party of such applicable laws.

- 7. If the Receiving Party is requested or becomes legally compelled (by oral questions, summons, interrogatories, requests for information or documents, subpoena, civil or criminal investigative demand, or similar process) or is required by a Government Authority and/or regulatory body (including any self-regulated organisation) to make any disclosure that is prohibited or otherwise constrained by this Undertaking or any similar undertaking or agreement, the Receiving Party will provide the Advisors, the Government and the Company with prompt written notice of such request so that the Advisors, the Government or the Company may seek an appropriate injunction, protective order or other appropriate remedy. Subject to the foregoing, the Receiving Party may furnish that portion (and only that portion) of the Confidential Information that, in the written opinion of the Interested Bidder's legal counsel (reasonably acceptable to the Advisors, the Government and the Company), the Receiving Party is legally compelled or is otherwise legally required to disclose or else stand liable for contempt or suffer other material censure or material penalty; provided, however, that the Receiving Party must use best efforts to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded to any Confidential Information so disclosed.
- 8. The confidentiality obligations contained in this Undertaking may at the discretion of the Government, the Company and the Advisors, be amended, modified or superseded upon the Interested Bidder executing a definitive agreements, but shall be without prejudice to any of the Advisors', the Government's or the Company's rights in respect of any breach of this Undertaking which may have occurred prior to such amendment, modification or supersession.
  - The Interested Bidder agrees that the Government reserves the right, in its sole discretion to modify the process of the Transaction in any part and/or to vary any terms at any time without prior notice to the Interested Bidder and/or to reject any or all proposals made by the Interested Bidder with regard to the Transaction. The Government may elect at any time to terminate further access by the Receiving Party to any Confidential Information required by the Interested Bidder in connection with its evaluation of the Transaction.
- 9. The Government and/or the Company may elect at any time to terminate further access by the Receiving Party to any Confidential Information in connection with its evaluation of the Transaction. After any such termination by the Government and/or the Company, or after the decision of the Interested Bidder to not proceed with the Transaction as specified in Clause 8 above, (i) the Interested Bidder (a) will promptly deliver to the concerned Disclosing Party, all Confidential Information including all documents or other materials furnished by such Disclosing Party to the Receiving Party, together with all copies and summaries thereof in the possession or under the control of the Receiving Party, and (b) will destroy materials generated by the Receiving Party that include or refer to any part of the Confidential Information, without retaining a copy of any such material or (ii) alternatively, if the Advisors, the Government or the Company request or give prior written consent to the Interested Bidder's request, the Interested Bidder will destroy or cause to be destroyed all Confidential Information in the possession or under the control of the Receiving Party. Any such destruction pursuant to the foregoing must be confirmed by the Interested Bidder in writing to each of the Advisors, the Government and the Company (such confirmation must include a list of the destroyed materials). The Interested Bidder acknowledges

that the return of the Confidential Information and the return or destruction of the Confidential Information pursuant to termination or otherwise shall not release the Receiving Party from its obligations under this Undertaking.

- 10. The Receiving Party shall not deal or communicate (except in the ordinary course of its business) with any officer, director or employee of the Government or the Company regarding the business, operations, prospects or finances of the Company, without the Advisors' prior written consent, unless otherwise agreed to in an executed shareholders' agreement entered into in connection with the purchase by the Interested Bidder. It is understood that the Advisors will arrange for appropriate contacts for due diligence purposes in connection with the Transaction. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Advisors in writing (i) all communications regarding any possible transaction, (ii) any requests for additional information, (iii) any requests for management meetings, and (iv) any queries regarding the Transaction, will be directed exclusively to the Advisors. However, if the Receiving Party is called upon by the Government and/or the Company for any discussions, the Receiving Party will do so or meet the Government and/or the Company only after duly informing the Advisors in writing.
- 11. The Government reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to reject any and all proposals made by the Receiving Party with regard to the Transaction and to terminate discussions and negotiations with the Receiving Party at any time. Without limiting the preceding sentence, nothing in this Undertaking (i) requires either the Interested Bidder or the Government to enter into the Transaction or to negotiate such Transaction for any specified period of time or (ii) requires the Advisors, the Government or the Company to enter into an agreement or an understanding, or prohibits the Advisors, the Government or the Company from entering into any agreement or understanding, for proceeding with the Transaction with any other Person.
- 12. The Receiving Party agrees that from the date of this Undertaking till the completion of the Transaction or as the case may be, till the time the Interested Bidder decide not to proceed with the Transaction, whether pursuant to Clauses 8 or 9 or 11, whichever is earlier, the Receiving Party shall not, directly or indirectly, buy, sell, negotiate, or enter into any arrangements for the purchase and / or sale of any of the shares of the Company, or advise any other person directly or indirectly to buy, sell, negotiate or enter into any arrangements for purchase and / or sell any of the shares of the Company, or take any action or make any statement or announcement that may affect the price of the shares of the Company.
- 13. The Interested Bidder understands, acknowledges and agrees that the Government, the Advisors and the Company retain the right to determine, in their sole discretion, the information that they wish to make available to the Receiving Party and the personnel through whom the same will be made available. Further, nothing in this Undertaking shall amount to or be construed as the Disclosing Party making any representations or warranties, express or implied, as to the accuracy and/or completeness of the Confidential Information and the Disclosing Party shall have no liability whatsoever to the Receiving Party resulting from the Interested Bidder's use of the Confidential Information. The Interested Bidder also agrees that if it determines to proceed with the Transaction, its determination will be solely based on the terms of the definitive agreements as well as on its

own investigation, analysis and assessment of its investment. Moreover, unless and until such agreements are entered into, neither the Government nor the Interested Bidder will be under any legal obligation of any kind with respect to the Transaction except for the matters specifically agreed to in this Undertaking or in another written and duly executed definitive agreement.

- 14. The Interested Bidder hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold the Advisors, the Government and the Company indemnified and harmless from all and any damages, losses, costs, or liabilities (including legal fees and the cost of enforcing this indemnity) arising out of or resulting from any unauthorized use or disclosure by any Receiving Party of the Confidential Information or other violation of this Undertaking (notwithstanding that a Receiving Party may not be party to this Undertaking) or of any similar undertaking or agreement. In addition, because an award of money damages (whether pursuant to the foregoing sentence or otherwise) would be inadequate for any breach of this Undertaking or any similar undertaking or agreement by the Receiving Party and any such breach would cause the Disclosing Party irreparable harm, the Interested Bidder also agrees that, in the event of any breach or threatened breach of this Undertaking or such similar undertaking or agreement, the Advisors, the Government or the Company will also be entitled, without the requirement of posting a bond or other security, to equitable relief, including injunctive relief and specific performance. Such remedies will not be the exclusive remedies for any breach of this Undertaking but will be in addition to all other remedies available at law or equity to the Advisors. the Government and/or the Company.
- 15. The Interested Bidder understands, acknowledges, confirms and agrees that each of the Government, the Company and the Advisors are beneficiaries under this Undertaking. The Interested Bidder further agrees and confirms that each of the Government, the Company and the Advisors, will be entitled to and may enforce, either individually or jointly, the obligations imposed on the Receiving Party under this Undertaking.
- 16. The Interested Bidder agrees that no failure or delay by the Advisors/the Government / the Company in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder will operate as a waiver thereof nor will any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any right, power or privilege hereto.
- 17. The terms of this Undertaking may be varied only with the Company's and the Government's prior written agreement. This Undertaking shall be effective as of the date first above given on the first page of this Undertaking.
- 18. This Undertaking shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of India without giving effect to its conflict of law principles.
- 19. All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be valid and sufficient if dispatched as follows in physical form at the mailing address of the recipient.

#### If the notice is to the Government:

Department of Heavy Industry Udyog Bhawan, Rafi Marg, New Delhi- 110011

Kind attention: Joint Secretary

#### If the notice is to the Advisors

Karandeep Singh YES Bank 48, Nyaya Marg, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110 021

### With a copy to:

M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co. Advocates and solicitors State Bank Buildings, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor, N.G.N. Vaidya Marg, Fort, Mumbai – 400 023 Maharashtra, India Kind attention: Mr. Sanjay Asher

#### If the notice is to the Company:

Engineering Projects India Ltd Core-3, Scope Complex, 7 Lodhi Road New Delhi – 110003 Kind attention: Company Secretary

If the notice is to the Interested Bidder:

 $[\bullet]$ 

Any of the Interested Bidder, the Government, the Company or the Advisors may change its address by a notice given to the other in the manner set forth above. All notices and other communications shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) on the expiry of seven days after posting, if transmitted by registered airmail or (ii) on the date immediately after the date of transmission with confirmed answer back if transmitted by telex, cable or facsimile whichever shall first occur.

|               | Undertaking has been executed by the duly authorizeder on the date and year first hereinabove written. |
|---------------|--|
| Witnessed by: | (Name of Interested Bidder)  |
|               |  |
| Name:         | Ву:  |
| Address:      | Schedule 1   |
| [x]           |  |

## **Annexure IV**

## **CPSE Declaration and Shareholding Certificate**

| We    | hereby                  | declare    | that     | we     | are    | a     | Central   | Public     | Sector     | Enterprise     | ('CPSE')       | named    |
|-------|-------------------------|------------|----------|--------|--------|-------|-----------|------------|------------|----------------|----------------|----------|
| and   | recognise               | d as a CPS | SE und   | er Sc  | hedul  | e     | by the    | Governm    | ent of In  | dia ('GoI').   |                |          |
|       | also confi<br>main a Cl |            | e contii | nue to | rema   | in a  | CPSE as   | on date aı | nd further | r undertake th | nat we shall o | continue |
| Belo  | w is the s              | hareholdi  | ng sum   | ımary  | of ou  | ır co | ompany as | of 31st M  | larch 201  | 7.             |                |          |
| All f | igures are              | to be rou  | nded t   | o 2.00 | ) deci | mal   | places    |            |            |                |                |          |

| Shareholder            | Number of Equity Shares Held | % shareholding |
|------------------------|------------------------------|----------------|
| The President of India |                              |                |
| Board of Directors     |                              |                |
| Others                 |                              |                |
| Total                  |                              |                |

**Authorised Signatory: Date:** 

**Company Secretary** 

| Δ | n | n | ex | 711 | r | ρ | $\mathbf{v}$ |
|---|---|---|----|-----|---|---|--------------|
|   | ш | ш | CA | ١u  |   | C | v            |

Date:

## **CPSE Declaration of Net Worth**

| We here | by declare  | that our  | Net Worth   | as of 31s  | t March 20  | )17* stood  | at Rs            | (rounded to | 2.00 |
|---------|-------------|-----------|-------------|------------|-------------|-------------|------------------|-------------|------|
| decimal | places) cro | re as per | the methodo | ology pres | cribed belo | w for the s | submission of Eo | I.          |      |

An independent chartered accountant signing this net worth certificate has duly verified the relevant details required in the table below.

All figures are to be filled in Rs. crore (rounded to 2.00 decimal places)

| Particulars   | Unit |
|---|------|
| Number of paid up equity shares (A)   |      |
| Face value of each share (B)  |      |
| Total paid up capital $(C = A*B)$   |      |
| Aggregate value of reserves created out of the profits and securities premium account (D)                         |      |
| Aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off (E) |      |
| Aggregate value of reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation (F) |      |
| Net worth $(G = C + D - E - F)$   |      |

and

**Chartered Accountant:** (With Registration Number)

<sup>\*</sup> If the Interested Bidder does not have audited financial statements as on March 31, 2017, Net Worth as per provisional financial account for the Interested Bidder as certified by its statutory auditor/Board of Director may be considered.

Annexure VI

### **CPSE Declaration of Profitability**

We hereby declare that our company has reported positive PAT in at least 3 of the last 5 audited financial statements on consolidated basis.

Please find below the PAT reported for last 5 audited statements.

All figures are to be filled in Rs. Crores (rounded to 2.00 decimal places)

| Fiscal Years | Net Profit |
|--------------|------------|
| 2013         |            |
| 2014         |            |
| 2015         |            |
| 2016         |            |
| 2017#        |            |

| Authorised Signatory:      | Date: |
|----------------------------|-------|
|                            |       |
| or                         |       |
|                            |       |
| Statutory Auditor:         |       |
| (With Registration Number) |       |

#If the Interested Bidder does not have audited financial statements as on March 31, 2017, Net Profit as per provisional financial account for the Interested Bidder as certified by its statutory auditor/Board of Director may be considered.

**Annexure VII** 

Power of Attorney

## Power of Attorney for signing of EoI

| То   | all   | to   | whom  | these  | presents           | shall  | come,  | We the entity)  |
|--|---|--|---|--|--------------------|--|--|---|
| having   |   | 0  | ur  | regis  | tered              | off  | ice  | at (address of  |
| the reg  | istered offi<br>authorize   | ce) do her<br>Mr./M  |   |  | onally and irrevo  |  |  | ate, appoint  |
| and lave executed connect disinversity but not GoI/Act to or a Information AND wor caus Attornershall at | wful attorned, and performed to with one structured to limited to living out attorn Memore hereby a sed to be done and shall alwards. | ey (hereina<br>form all su<br>or incident<br>shares held<br>o signing<br>generally of<br>of our apporandum of<br>gree to rate<br>one by the<br>all acts, de- | after referred to<br>ch acts, agreen<br>al to submission<br>d by the Gover<br>and submission<br>dealing with Go<br>plication for op-<br>dated 12 Octob-<br>ify and confirm<br>Attorney pursueds and things<br>eemed to have | o as the "Att<br>ments, deeds<br>on of our appriment of In<br>on of all apport/Advisor/C<br>qualification<br>per 2017 issuent and do here<br>uant to and is<br>done by the<br>been done by | sition of          | our name a<br>ngs as are<br>ification for<br>g Projects<br>oviding in<br>atters in conton (as defi-<br>limited.<br>firm all act<br>powers contous of the portouching | and on our be<br>necessary or<br>or the propose<br>India Limite<br>formation/ re<br>nnection with<br>fined in the late, deeds and<br>nferred by the<br>powers hereb<br>g these prese | ehalf, to do, required in ed strategic d including esponses to n or relating Preliminary things done is Power of by conferred |
| All the  | terms used  | l herein bu  | ıt defined shall  | have the me  | eaning ascribed to | such term  | s in the EoI.  |   |
| IN W<br>PRINC  | ITNESS<br>IPAL HAV  | WHEREC<br>VE EXEC  | OF WE,<br>UTED THIS P   | OWER OF A  | ATTORNEY ON        | THIS   | IE ABOVE<br>DAY OF   | NAMED   |
| In the p<br>1.<br>2.<br>Accept<br>Name,  | oresence of<br>ed   | :<br>Address of  | on and address  | )  |                    |  |  |   |

**Note:** The mode of execution of the Power of Attorney should be in accordance with the procedure, if any, laid down by the applicable law and the charter documents of the executant(s) and when it is so required,

the same should be under common seal affixed in accordance with the required procedure. The power of attorney shall be appropriately stamped and notarized. § Wherever required, the Bidder should submit for verification the extract of the charter documents and documents such as a board or shareholders' resolution/power of attorney in favour of the person executing this Power of Attorney for the delegation of power hereunder on behalf of the Bidder.

**Annexure VIII** 

## Statement of Legal Capacity of Interested Bidder

[On the letterhead of the Interested Bidder submitting the Statement of Legal Capacity]

| Reference No.:  |
|---|
| Date:   |
|   |
| To,   |
| Mr. Karandeep Singh, YES Bank 48, Nyaya Marg, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110 021   |
| Sub.: Invitation of expression of interest for strategic disinvestment of 100% shareholding of GoI in Engineering Projects India Limited ("EPI") by way of acquisition by similarly placed CPSE.  |
| Sir/Madam,  |
| This is with reference to the advertisement dated 12 October 2017 ("Advertisement") inviting Expression of Interest ("EoI") for strategic disinvestment of such number of shares representing ninety nine point nine eight (99.98%) of the equity share capital of EPI, a company registered under the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at Core-3, Scope Complex, 7 Lodhi Road, New Delhi–110003 ("Strategic Disinvestment"). |
| Being duly authorized to represent and act on behalf of (hereinafter referred to as the "Interested Bidder"), and having reviewed and fully understood all of the qualification requirements and information provided, the undersigned hereby expresses the Interested Bidder's interest for bidding for the Strategic Disinvestment.   |

We have read and understood the contents of the Advertisement and the Preliminary Information Memorandum dated 12 October 2017 ("PIM") and are desirous of participating in the Strategic Disinvestment and confirm and undertake as follows:

1. We are interested in bidding for the Strategic Disinvestment of such number of shares representing hundred (100 %\*) of the equity share capital of EPIL held by Government of India (99.98% of total share capital).

2. We have examined in detail and have understood the terms and conditions and eligibility criteria stipulated in the Advertisement and the PIM and we satisfy the eligibility criteria stipulated in the Advertisement and the PIM.

3. We satisfy the eligibility criteria detailed in the Advertisement and the PIM.

4. We have agreed that [●] (insert name and designation of individual) will act as our representative and has been duly authorised to submit the EoI ("Representative").

5. The Representative is vested with the requisite power and authority to furnish this letter and Form A along with all the documents to be submitted pursuant to the EoI and authenticate the same.

| Our PAN number is                                     |
|---|
| Our TAN number is                                     |
|   |
|   |
| Thank you.  |
| Yours sincerely,                                      |
|   |
| For and on behalf of: (name of the Interested Bidder) |
| Signature: (Authorised Representative and Signatory)  |
|   |
|   |
| Name of the Person: [●]                               |
| Designation: [●]                                      |

**Annexure IX** 

## REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION

| r o | rm –A Reference No.:  |
|-----|---|
| Da  | ite:  |
| Na  | me of the Interested Bidder:  |
|     |   |
| 1.  | Constitution (Tick, wherever applicable)  a. Public Limited Company;  b. Private Limited Company;  c. Partnership Firm;  d. Trust; or  e. Others, if any (Please specify).  |
| 2.  | Memorandum and Articles of Association or other Constitution Documents of the Interested Bidder.  |
| 3.  | A certificate duly signed by our Company Secretary/ any other officer in charge of legal affairs, stating that we are eligible to participate in the proposed Strategic Disinvestment in terms of Clause of our Memorandum and Articles and Association (or any other Constitution Document). |
| 4.  | Basis of eligibility for participation in the process (please mention basis and attach supporting documents):   |
|     |   |

- a. Attach audited financials (including profit and loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and the annual report of the last three financial years;
- b. Attach certificate from a chartered accountant/ statutory auditor certifying the net worth as defined in the eligibility criteria.
- 5. Details of Shareholding Pattern.
- 6. Provided that, in the event the Interested Bidder has been incorporated in the last 2 years, subject to compliance with all applicable laws, do not have audited financial statements as on March 31, 2017, a provisional balance sheet and profit and loss account for the Interested Bidder as certified by its Board of Directors/ any other governing body should be submitted.

- 7. Nature of business carried out by the Interested Bidder and a profile containing information on the Interested Bidder's operations. The profile should contain such details as business history and growth, business areas and activities, capability of the company as demonstrated, inter alia, in its past track record to run its own business.
- 8. List of IB's board of directors and senior management along with an overview of their roles and responsibilities and organization structure certified by the company secretary of the IB.
- 9. Summary of the roles and responsibilities of the directors and key management personnel of the IB certified by the company secretary of the IB.
- 10. Brief write up of the IB's of their international operations, joint ventures / alliances (whether international or domestic), nature and size of such operations, equity ownership, if applicable, copies of the audited accounts for the last one year of such companies.
- 11. The names and addresses of those companies and the professional firms, if any, who are (or will be) advising the IB, together with the names of the principal individual advisors at those companies and firms.
- 12. Date and Place of incorporation.
- 13. Date of Commencement of Certificate.
- 14. Full address including Phone No. / Fax No / Email address.
  - a. Registered Office; and
  - b. Head Office.
- 15. Address for correspondence.
- 16. Details of all outstanding litigations.
- 17. Please provide details of all contingent liabilities that, if materialised, that have or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the business, operations (or results of operations), assets, liabilities and/or financial condition of the Interested Bidder, or other similar business combination or sale.
- 18. Contact Person(s):
  - a. Name:
  - b. Designation
  - c. Phone No.:
  - d. Mobile No.:
  - e. Fax No.:
  - f. Email:

Thank you.

| Yours sincerely,                                      |
|---|
| For and on behalf of: (name of the Interested Bidder) |
| Signature: (Authorised Representative and Signatory)  |
| Name of the Person: [●]                               |
| Designation: [●]                                      |

**Note:** Please follow the order adopted in the format provided. If the Interested Bidder is unable to respond to a particular question/request, the relevant number must nonetheless be set out with the words 'No response' against it.

Annexure X

#### **DECLARATION**

1. We solemnly declare that we or our Director(s), CEO or principal officers are not convicted by any court of law or are indicted or have received any adverse order from regulatory authority relating to a grave offence with regard to matters other than the security and integrity of the country.

Grave offence for this purpose shall include

- a) What constitutes "Fraud" under the provisions of the SEBI Act, 1992 and any of the regulations, rules, circulars, notifications, etc. made thereunder.
- b) SEBI orders on the IB casting doubt on the ability of the IB to hold the stake in the Company.
- c) Any conviction by a court of law.
- d) In case of SEBI's order of prosecution, disqualification will arise only on conviction by court of law.
- 2. We further declare that we or our sister companies have not been issued a chargesheet by any Governmental Authority or convicted by a court of law for any offence with regard to matters relating to the security and integrity of the country.
- 3. We further declare that we, our sister company, our Director(s), CEO, principal officers are not under any investigation pending before any regulatory authority or other authority.
- 4. We declare that complete information as required is provided in the EoI and RFQ and/or Statement of Legal Capacity.

(Interested Bidder's name) (Interested Bidder's Address)

In case any IB is unable to give above undertaking in view of any conviction, indictment, order or investigation as above full details of the same shall be provided including names of persons involved, designation, charge/offence, ordering/investigating agency, status/outcome etc. with supporting/relevant documents. Any entity, which is disqualified from participating in the Transaction, shall not be allowed to remain associated with it or get associated merely because it has preferred an appeal against the order based on which it has been disqualified. The mere pendency of appeal will have no effect on the disqualification.

Annexure XI

Department of Investment and Public Asset Management (DIPAM) Guidelines

No. 6/4/2001-DD-II Government of India Ministry of Disinvestment Block 14, CGO Complex New Delhi.

Dated: 13th July, 2001

### **OFFICE MEMORANDUM**

Sub: Guidelines for qualification of Bidders seeking to acquire stakes in Public Sector Enterprises through the process of disinvestment

Government has examined the issue of framing comprehensive and transparent guidelines defining the criteria for bidders interested in PSE-disinvestment so that the parties selected through competitive bidding could inspire public confidence. Earlier, criteria like net worth, experience etc. used to be prescribed. Based on experience and in consultation with concerned departments, Government has decided to prescribe the following additional criteria for the qualification / disqualification of the parties seeking to acquire stakes in public sector enterprises through disinvestment:

- a) In regard to matters other than the security and integrity of the country, any conviction by a Court of Law or indictment / adverse order by a regulatory authority that casts a doubt on the ability of the bidder to manage the public sector unit when it is disinvested, or which relates to a grave offence would constitute disqualification. Grave offence is defined to be of such a nature that it outrages the moral sense of the community. The decision in regard to the nature of the offence would be taken on case to case basis after considering the facts of the case and relevant legal principles, by the Government.
- b) In regard to matters relating to the security and integrity of the country, any charge-sheet by an agency of the Government / conviction by a Court of Law for an offence committed by the bidding party or by any sister concern of the bidding party would result in disqualification. The decision in regard to the relationship between the sister concerns would be taken, based on the relevant facts and after examining whether the two concerns are substantially controlled by the same person/persons.
- c) In both (a) and (b), disqualification shall continue for a period that Government deems appropriate.
- d) Any entity, which is disqualified from participating in the disinvestment process, would not be allowed to remain associated with it or get associated merely because it has preferred an appeal against the order based on which it has been disqualified. The mere pendency of appeal will have no effect on the disqualification.
- e) The disqualification criteria would come into effect immediately and would apply to all bidders for various disinvestment transactions, which have not been completed as yet.

- f) Before disqualifying a concern, a Show Cause Notice why it should not be disqualified would be issued to it and it would be given an opportunity to explain its position.
- g) Henceforth, these criteria will be prescribed in the advertisements seeking Expression of Interest (EoI) from the interested parties. The interested parties would be required to provide the information on the above criteria, along with their Expressions of Interest (EoI). The bidders shall be required to provide with their EoI an undertaking to the effect that no investigation by a regulatory authority is pending against them. In case any investigation is pending against the concern or its sister concern or against its CEO or any of its Directors/Managers/employees, full details of such investigation including the name of the investigating agency, the charge/offence for which the investigation has been launched, name and designation of persons against whom the investigation has been launched and other relevant information should be disclosed, to the satisfaction of the Government. For other criteria also, a similar undertaking shall be obtained along with EoI.

-sd/-

(A.K. Tewari)

Under Secretary to the Government of India

Note: Vide clarification dated: 10.1.2002 to the above guidelines it has been provided that the following offence be treated as a grave offence:

- a) Orders of Securities and Exchange Board of India which directly relates to "fraud" as defined in the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and/or regulations made thereunder;
- b) Orders of Securities and Exchange Board of India which cast a doubt on the ability of the IB to manage the Company after the sale of the shares under the Transaction;
- c) Any conviction by a Court of Law;
- d) In cases in which Securities and Exchange Board of India also passes a prosecution order, disqualification of the IB should arise only on conviction by the court of law.

## **GLOSSARY**

PIM Preliminary Information Memorandum

YES Bank YES Bank Limited

Transaction Advisor YES Bank Limited

EPI Engineering Projects (India) Limited

Company Engineering Projects (India) Limited

DHI Department of Heavy Industries, Ministry of Heavy Industries &

Public Enterprises

DIPAM Department of Investment & Public Asset Management

Transaction Proposed Strategic Disinvestment of EPIL by DIPAM

IB Interested Bidders

EoI Expression of Interest

RFP Request for Proposal

CIM Confidential Information Memorandum

GoI Government of India, or any entity representing GoI such as

DIPAM or DHI

GCFI Gross Capital Formation in Infrastructure

CPSEs Central Public Sector Undertakings: Government companies

wherein more than 50 % equity is held by the Central Government or the subsidiaries of these companies, if registered in India,

wherein any CPSE has more than 50% equity

PMC Project Management Consultancy

PMAY Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana

Due Date The last day for Submission of EoI

EPC Engineering, Construction and Procurement

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

CAGR Compound annual growth rate

Net Profit Profit After Tax

Net Worth The definition of Net Worth is as follows and is as per Clause 57

of Section 2, Companies Act, 2013: Net Worth = aggregate value of the paid-up share capital + all reserves\* created out of the profits and securities premium account – aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous

expenditure not written off.

PSU Public Sector Undertaking

PMC Project Management Consultancy

PPP Public Private Partnership